
Cockey Moor in World War 2
With additional information from Research by Ken Bullock

(from his book “The Story of Cockey Moor otherwise Ainsworth”)



1939: 

• In June Mr Balderstone, the headmaster of the Day School, 
resigned.  He was succeeded in the August by Mr Clarence 
Walker.  During the summer holidays. Air raid shelters were 
erected. Three evacuees were admitted to the school.

• In December, the air raid sirens were sounded and the 
children were taken to the shelters

• The Ainsworth Band broke up and the band instruments 
were handed over to the local Home Guard



1939: 

This article appeared in the local paper



1940:

In January, Ainsworth village was snowed up for about a week. Troops stationed at Lowercroft
helped to clear the snow. As a result of the snowstorms, there was a shortage of food in the 
village shops.  It was said that in some places the snow almost reached the top of the lamp 
standards 

First rose queen event  - in garden of 
Davenport Fold Farm, Arthur Lane

The Water Tower 
was completed



1941: 

Because of the danger of incendiary bombs being dropped on the church, a stirrup 
pump, ladder and sand bucket were purchased as part of the air raid precautions 

The original Guide Unit, started by Stella Metcalfe



1942: 



Florence Buntin, Tom Shepherd and 
May (Mary) Shepherd, outside the 
shop on Bury Old Road (second house 
down – towards Bolton – from the 
bungalow opposite the Methodist 
chapel (date unknown)



1943: 

Because of a gale which swept the village 
in April, damage was done to the front of 
Ainsworth Methodist Chapel.  Repair work 
was carried out at a cost of £400

Arthur Smith, who lived at Titus Cottage and worked in 
the Co-op until he was 18.

He was in the East Lancs regiment and when the 
Lancashire Fusiliers came to relieve them, the first 
person he saw was his friend from the village, Billy 
Barlow



1944: 
• 2 Well Street was sold to the Conservative club

• It was decided to use what was known as the Whitehead pew (a private pew on the left hand side of the 
sanctuary in Christ Church) as a Choir Vestry.

• Miss Haslam, headmistress of the Infant’s school, resigned.  She had held this position for thirty years.  With 
her resignation, the infant school ceased to be a separate department and was merged again with the 
remainder of the Day School

panto



1945: 
• The Second World War came to an end and the children of the Day School, were given a holiday on 

V.E. Day (8th May) and on V.J. Day (15th August)

• The Ainsworth Band was re-formed under Mr E. T. Tweedy. As only eight of the original band 
remained, an appeal was made to the local lads to join and several became bandsmen

The panto
Costumes for the chorus made from blackout curtains, with cotton wool balls sewn on!  

Went “on tour” to entertain the troops down at Lowercroft



Two of the graves in Christ Church graveyard


